
 

      Downtown Investment Authority 

Hybrid Virtual In-Person Meeting  
Wednesday, October 16, 2024  

2:00 PM 
 

 
 

 
MEMBERS: 
  
Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Board Chair   Carol Worsham 
Sondra Fetner, Esq.     Jim Citrano 
Micah Heavener      Melinda Powers, Esq. 
Scott Wohlers      John Hirabayashi 
Jill Caffey 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
A. Form 8B: Voting Conflict Disclosures 
B. September 18th, 2024, Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes 

Approval 
C. Consent Agenda 

i. Resolution 2024-10-04 Hogan – Laura Corridor Activation Program 
ii. Resolution 2024-10-06 Project Blue Sky 

D. Resolution 2024-10-01 InvestDTJax Website 
E. Resolution 2024-10-02 DIA Property Due Diligence 
F. Resolution 2024-10-03 Core Residential Incentive Program 
G. Resolution 2024-10-07 Market and Property Optimization Study 
H. Resolution 2024-10-09 DIA CEO Search Firm 

 

IV. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
A. September 18th, 2024, Downtown Investment Authority Board Meeting 

Minutes Approval 
B. Consent Agenda 

i. Resolution 2024-10-08 Pour Taproom Modification 
ii. Resolution 2024-10-10 Urban Dough Modification  

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Resolution 2024-10-05 Commending John Silveira’s Service to RAM 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
  

VII. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING 
A. CEO Monthly Update 

 

[CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 



Downtown Investment Authority October 2024 Board Meeting 
Agenda 

       

 
 

VIII. CHAIRMAN REPORT 
 

IX. OTHER MATTERS TO BE ADDED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIR 
 

X. ADJOURN 
 

PHYSICAL LOCATION 
Jacksonville Public Library-Main Library/Downtown  
303 North Laura Street 
Multipurpose Room (located in the Conference Center) 
Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

 
 VIRTUAL LOCATION 

Interested persons desiring to attend this meeting virtually can do so via Zoom (including by 
computer or telephone) using the following meeting access information: 

 
Join Zoom Webinar 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87990789951?pwd=6D95Mq0jlJ1V4PLG9oxpc7UWGLTOSL.1 

 
Webinar ID: 879 9078 9951 
Passcode: 062932 

 
One tap mobile 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

 
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keJuzyhyuj 
  

 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87990789951?pwd=6D95Mq0jlJ1V4PLG9oxpc7UWGLTOSL.1
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keJuzyhyuj


TAB III.B 

SEPTEMBER 18TH, 2024 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 
MINUTES APPROVAL 





 

PAGE 1 OF 6 

 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

Community Redevelopment Agency Hybrid Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

DIA Board Members: Patrick Krechowski, Esq.; Sondra Fetner, Esq.; Melinda Powers, Esq.; 

Scott Wohlers, Jim Citrano; and Micah Heavener 

 

Mayor’s Office: None 

 

Council Members: None 

 

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate 

and Development; Guy Parola, Director of Operations; Allan DeVault, Project Manager; and Ava 

Hill, Administrative Assistant 

 

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The CRA meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm by Patrick Krechowski, Board Chair. This was 

followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and introductions.  

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The following people made in-person public comments, made public comments virtually through 

Zoom, or provided comments that were read into the record by DIA Staff. Note: the subject matter 

of the comment(s) indicated to the right of each person: 

 

John Nooney   Various issues 

 

III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

A. FORM 8B: VOTING CONFLICT DISCLOSURES 

   

None declared. 

 

B. AUGUST 21ST, 2024, COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the meeting minutes as presented. 

 

Motion:  Board Member Citrano motioned to approve the meeting minutes. 

Second: Board Member Wohlers seconded the motion. 



 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the meeting minutes. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

C. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Consent Agenda Items: 2024-09-02 and 2024-09-03 

 

Motion:  Board Member Citrano motioned to approve the consent agenda. 

Second: Board Member Powers seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the consent agenda. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

D. RESOLUTION 2024-09-01 324 NORTH BROAD STREET FAÇADE 

STABILIZATION  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

ACTING AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“C.R.A.”) 

OF THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AREA TRANSFERRING ONE HUNDRED NINETY-FIVE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($195,000) COMPRISED OF FY 24-25 UNALLOCATED PLAN 

AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURE BUDGET TO  A NEW C.R.A. CAPITAL 

PROJECT “324 NORTH BROAD STREET FAÇADE STABILIZATION AND 

BUILDING DEMOLITION”; INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER (“CEO”) TO EFFECTUATE A BUDGET TRANSFER CONSISTENT 

EXHIBIT ‘A’; INSTRUCTING ITS CEO TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY 

ACTIONS TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION AND 

FURTHER AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE 

CHANGES TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BUDGET OR 

ACCOUNTING OFFICES; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Guy Parola provided an overview of the resolution, providing for a history of how the 

City and subsequently DIA acquired the property. A summary of the condition of the 

property together with a scope of work to be performed as well as the funding source was 

further provided.  



 

PAGE 3 OF 4 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

Board Chair Krechowski, Board Member Citrano and Board Member Fetner commented 

and asked questions pertaining to the condition of the property and funding. Questions 

answer by Guy Parola, Steve Kelley and Lori Boyer. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Wohlers motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Citrano seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0 

 

E. RESOLUTION 2024-09-05 RD RIVER CITY MODIFICATION 

 
A MODIFICATION AND RESTATEMENT OF RESOLUTION 2024-05-05 OF THE 

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL OF A MULTIFAMILY REV GRANT AND A COMPLETION GRANT 

WITH A TOTAL MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS OF FIFTY-EIGHT MILLION, SEVEN 

HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO/100 CENTS 

($58,798,000.00) FOR RD RIVER CITY BREWERY, LLC IN THE SOUTHSIDE 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA, AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA 

TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 

RESOLUTION, INCLUDING THE EXECUTION OF A REDEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT, OR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENT; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Steve Kelley provided an overview of the resolution. Mr. Kelley began by stating that the 

modifications do not affect the incentive amounts or deal structure previously approved 

and that the modifications are technical in nature. Mr. Kelley provided an overview on: the 

City’s timing on reconciliation of the pari passu contribution costs; defining construction 

of commencement; satisfaction and release of the completion guarantee; and addition of 

liquidity or net worth covenants. A fifth amendment reducing developer equity from $67 

million to $60 million.  

 

Board Member Citrano, Board Member Wohlers, CEO Boyer, Mr. Kelley and Steve 

Diebenow, Esq., developer representative, discussed equity and funding draw details, the 

details of which are memorialized the September 18th, 2024 CRA Board Meeting transcript 

on record with the DIA.   

 

 



 

PAGE 4 OF 4 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

Board Member Citrano motioned for an amendment to the resolution to permit an initial 

draw advancement of up toe $250,000, subject to the approval of the Office of General 

Counsel. 

 

Board Member Heavener seconded the motion. 

 

Board Member Citrano motioned for an amendment to the resolution to reduce the 

developer’s equity from $67 million to $60 million, subject to the parameters of Resolution 

2024-05-05. 

 

Board Member Wohlers seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the amendments. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution as twice amended. 

 

Motion: Board Member Wohlers motioned to approve the resolution as twice 

amended.  

Seconded: Board Member Citrano seconded the motion. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-1 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Board Chair Krechowski adjourned the CRA meeting at 3:10 PM. 

 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 

comments of this meeting, a recording is available upon request.  Please contact Ava Hill at 

avah@coj.net to acquire a recording of the meeting. And  

mailto:avah@coj.net


TAB III.C.i 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 HOGAN-LAURA CORRIDOR ACTIVATION PROGRAM 





RESOLUTION 2024 -10-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY, 

ACTING AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“CRA”) 

OF THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AREA; ADOPTING THE TARGETED LAURA HOGAN FOCUS AREA 

INITIATIVE; DIRECTING THE STAFF OF DIA TO ASSIGN PRIORITY 

STATUS TO BOTH PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROJECTS WITHIN THE 

HOGAN LAURA FOCUS AREA; INSTRUCTING ITS CEO TO TAKE 

ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF 

THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the CRA for the Combined 

Northbank Community Redevelopment Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2014-0560, the City Council adopted a Community 

Redevelopment Plan and Business Investment and Development Strategy for Downtown 

Jacksonville (the “BID Plan”), as updated and amended by Ordinance 2022-0372; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the BID Plan establishes both retail and residential redevelopment goals 

and establishes a variety of incentive programs to support such efforts including the Downtown 

Preservation and Revitalization Program, Façade grants, Retail Enhancement grants, REV grants, 

among others; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA has already initiated and funded several infrastructure and capital 

projects in the focus area and envisions additional projects that could benefit redevelopment in 

the focus area; and 

 

WHEREAS, a Special Committee on the Future of Downtown was convened by City 

Council earlier this year and among the topics of discussion was the City Council’s desire to 

focus on redevelopment within the Northbank Core; and 

 

WHEREAS, recently, a major corporation chose not to renew its lease within Downtown 

listing among its reasons the lack of dining opportunities and street level activation in the focus 

area; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA staff researched the Hogan Laura focus area, evaluating opportunities 

for renovation, redevelopment, and street level activation for each parcel as well as supporting 

capital projects; and  

 

WHEREAS,  DIA has evaluated the potential cost of such efforts to the CRA and has 

concluded that such a program is financially feasible and has received positive feedback on this 

program from the business community as well as Downtown stakeholders and presented this 

potential program to the Administration for review; and 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 2 OF 14 

 

 

WHEREAS, the focus area imitative would involve a proactive outreach to building 

owners and tenants in the focus area with the goal of high impact near-term implementation; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA staff recommends that the DIA Board adopt the Hogan Laura Focus 

Area Initiative as a short-term strategy of the Northbank CRA to be implemented and assigned 

priority over the next three years.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

Section 1.  The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2.   The DIA hereby adopts a Hogan Laura Focus Area Initiative to 

proactively prioritize redevelopment activities within this area over the next three years, 

including but not limited to the potential projects identified on Exhibit A. 
 

Section 3.  The DIA hereby authorizes its CEO to take all actions necessary to 

effectuate the intent of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4.  This Resolution 2024-10-04 shall become effective on the date it is signed 

by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:         DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________             

     Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair             Date 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 3 OF 14 

 

Exhibit A 
Focus Activation Area 

 
Laura/Hogan frontages and cross streets between City Hall and Riverfront 

Plaza as depicted below 
 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 4 OF 14 

 

A. Why this Area? 
i. Easy access, central to the City, and proximity to the River 

ii. Availability of parking including City owned/controlled Ed Ball parking 
garage 

iii. Riverfront Plaza Park under construction 
iv. James Weldon Johnson Park, MOCA, and Public Library provide activation 

and interest to be leveraged 
v. Hogan Street Emerald Trail Link projects to begin construction this 

summer 
vi. Two-way conversion of Adams and Forsyth underway 

vii. Designated Food and Beverage corridor 
viii. 12 blocks with frontages/approximately 51 parcels 
ix. High concentration of downtown employees through the weekdays 

 
B. Principle Impact 

i. Concentrated sense of activation, safety, and vibrancy 
ii. Improve the identity of Downtown Jacksonville, destination for residents 

and visitors across Jacksonville more broadly 
iii. Historic character 
iv. Develop food and beverage corridor along Emerald trail 
v. Capitalize on other infrastructure investments 

vi. 50 plus residential units 
vii. Increased Local Option Sales Tax (quickly) and ad valorem (over time) 

 
C. Prioritize Existing Buildings First: principal redevelopment investments; 

existing structures 
 

i. One Enterprise - PRIVATE (Block 1) 
1. Ground floor 4,200 SF restaurant facing Hogan with outdoor dining 
2. Possible plaza renovations in exchange for easement 

 

    



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 5 OF 14 

 

ii. Truist building deck facing Hogan St and Bay St – PRIVATE (Block 2) 
1. Opportunity to create vibrant outdoor second floor deck food and 

beverage space of approximately 6800 SF with sidewalk access - 
possible FAB-REP 

2. Create a program to incentivize property owners to turn their 
buildings “inside out” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Hogan Street Side     Bay Street Side 

 
iii. Talara parking garage – 1 small retail – PRIVATE (Block 3) 

1. 600 SF; possible FAB-REP 

   
 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 6 OF 14 

 

iv. Furchgotts building aka 128 W Adams restoration - PRIVATE (Block 10) 
1. 40 units 
2. 3,800 SF restaurant plus more in basement level; possible FAB-

REP 
3. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District and landmark status - DPRP eligible 

 
 

v. Hogan Building aka Exchange Building/170 Hogan- PRIVATE (Block 3) 
1. 2 stories – 9,000 SF ground floor retail 
2. Create a program to incentivize property owners to turn their 

buildings “inside out” 
3. Second floor lofts (8-10?) or retail 
4. Possible DPRP, or FAB-REP, Facade and Residential Core 
5. Candidate for DPRP if landmark status attained 

  
 

vi. Ed Ball retail frontages on Hogan - 2 restaurants- PUBLIC (Block 4) 
1. Knotts – 1,285 SF - $100,000 CRA capital project 
2. Former DVI space – 2,500 SF - $200,000 CRA capital project 
3. Directly across highest concentration of existing restaurants along 

Hogan Street 
4. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 7 OF 14 

 

  
 

vii. Historic Snyder Church Building - PUBLIC (Block 11) 
1. Complete renovation for activated use taking revered history into 

consideration 
2. Possible DPRP 
3. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District 

     
 

viii. 221 West Laura aka Mag’s Café - PRIVATE (Block 15) 
1. 3,700 SF footprint 
2. 1,900 SF Retail/restaurant 1st floor 
3. Residential above 
4. Remove billboard or put it to use. 
5. Possible FAB-REP, Façade, etc. 
6. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District - possible DPRP 

  
 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 8 OF 14 

 

ix. Juliette’s Balcony aka 225 N. Laura - PRIVATE (Block 15) 
1. 2,000 SF restaurant; possible FAB-REP 
2. 6-8 residential units 
3. Possible DPRP  
4. Local landmark – possible & Contributing structure to the 

Downtown Jacksonville National Historic District 

   
 

x. Chamblin’s aka 215 N. Laura - PRIVATE (Block 15) 
1. Upper floor residential (6-8 units) 
2. Possible FAB-REP and facade  
3. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District-possible DPRP 

 
 

xi.  Elks Club - PRIVATE (Block 15) 
1. Two vacant retail  
2. Possible FAB-REP 
3. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 9 OF 14 

 

 
 

xii. Greenleaf building - PRIVATE (Block 11) 
1. Office-historic renovation already approved 
2. 2 Restaurants possible FAB-REP 
3. Potential rooftop bar/restaurants 
4. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District 

   
 

xiii. Laura Street Trio - PRIVATE (Block 14) 
1. Considered by many to be the heart of the City and has proven to 

be the most challenging redevelopment opportunity 
2. Hospitality, Residential, Restaurant, Retail 
3. Total redevelopment and new construction costs estimated at 

more than $200,000,000; the total development cost of the 
historic buildings alone is estimated to exceed $50,000,000 

4. Possible DPRP plus REV; or standalone incentive package 

 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 10 OF 14 

 

xiv. VyStar Garage – 61 N Laura Street - PRIVATE (Block 13) 
1. Approved funding to create 3,500 SF Pour Taproom and 1,900 SF 

Pizza Jeans with 2,500 SF shared mezzanine and 2,300 SF shared 
kitchen 

2. Both restaurants to have activated outdoor space 
3. Expected delivery mid-2025 

 
 

xv. Bank of America Tower - PRIVATE (Block 9) 
1. 44-story tower with inward facing restaurant and retail on the 

ground floor that principally serves tenants only. 
2. Opportunity to create vibrant sidewalk food and bev space  
3. Create a program to incentivize property owners to turn their 

buildings “inside out” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Laura St. and Bay St corner Laura St and Forsyth St corner 

 
xvi. Former Wells Fargo/Independent Life Building – PRIVATE (Block 8) 

1. 37-story tower with inward facing restaurant and retail on the 
ground floor that principally serves tenants only. 

2. Opportunity to create approximately 415 SF vibrant sidewalk food 
and bev. space. 

3. Create a program to incentivize property owners to turn their 
buildings “inside out” 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 11 OF 14 

 

 
 

xvii. Schultz Building - PRIVATE (Block 10) 
1. Ground floor 2nd generation restaurant/bar space ready for tenant 

other than deferred maintenance 
2. Condominium structure, single owner. 
3. Upper floors - potential conversion to residential or better 

activation as office. 
4. Contributing structure to the Downtown Jacksonville National 

Historic District 
5. Potential FAB-REP, Façade, etc. 

 
 

xviii. 119-129 W Adams Street - PRIVATE (Block 11) 
1. Common ownership for these two vacant buildings. 
2. Floor plate approximately 3,000 SF in in 119 Adams St (split into 

two bays of 2,730 SF and 3,570 SF), 129 W Adams and 6,300 SF 
a. Proposed rehabilitation to retail/restaurant frontage, office 

or residential on upper floors (119 is two stories, 129 is four 
stories). 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 12 OF 14 

 

b. Contributing structures to the Downtown Jacksonville 
National Historic District 

 
 

xix. 126 W Adams St. aka Jacksonville Professional Building - PRIVATE 
(Block 10) 

1. Ground floor occupied by restaurant and Jacksonville Area Legal 
Aid (related to building owner) 

2. Upper floor occupancy and use uncertain, could be suitable for 
conversion to housing. 

3. Contributing structures to the Downtown Jacksonville National 
Historic District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 13 OF 14 

 

D. Hogan Street/Bay Street – new construction – PRIVATE (Block 1) 
i. Create retail frontage connecting riverfront park to Hogan Street corridor 

ii. Additional public parking possibility for Riverfront Plaza and Hogan Street 
corridor 

 
 

E. Current Operator Upgrade Investments 
i. $1-2,000,000 

ii. Add new awnings?  
iii. HVAC upgrades? (Deferred maintenance considerations) 
iv. Façade improvements? 

 
F. ROI or Criteria for Private Investment   

i. When required? Not in REP, Façade or FAB-REP; DPRP  
 

G. Activation Investments 
i. Tree planting 

1. Forsyth and Adams unconstrained 
2. Hogan project 
3. Laura replant as required  

ii. Repair/replace uplighting on Laura - get estimate 
iii. Snyder planters - If we clean out planters and paint doors, will a group 

adopt the planters and keep refreshed with annuals and shrubs 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-04 

PAGE 14 OF 14 

 

iv. Art under skyway and across street to enhance F&B district 

 
 

H. CRA Cost and Budget 
i. Estimate CRA funded expenses 

1. Existing programs - potential need $6,000,000; currently have 
$2,500,000 on hand, but funds available for transfer 

2. Capital improvements - $2 million miscellaneous; $8 million two-
way Forsyth and Adams (on hand or available by transfer) 

 
I. Potential DPRP Need (NIC Trio) - $20,000,000 total 

 
J. Timing 

i. Riverfront Plaza to open by 12/31/25 
ii. Hogan Street to be complete by 12/31/25? 

iii. Goal to have as many of above completed by 12/31/25 as possible using 
CRA funds 

iv. Would need City to fund DPRP in core 



TAB III.C.ii 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 PROJECT BLUE SKY 





RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING, AND AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT 

AUTHORITY (“DIA’) TO ENTER INTO AN ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMONG THE CITY OF 

JACKSONVILLE, DIA, AND PROJECT BLUE SKY (THE “COMPANY”), 

TO SUPPORT THE RELOCATION OF THE BUSINESS 

HEADQUARTERS TO A DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE LOCATION IN 

THE SOUTHSIDE CRA, PROVIDING A PRIVATE CAPITAL  

INVESTMENT OF NOT LESS THAN $20,000,000 AND COMMITMENT 

TO THE CREATION OF 150 NEW JOBS IN DOING SO, 

(COLLECTIVELY, THE “PROJECT”); AUTHORIZING A  RECAPTURE 

ENHANCED VALUE (“REV”) GRANT NOT TO EXCEED $2,300,000 IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT; RECOMMENDING 

JACKSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A TARGET 

INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT GRANT OF $750,000 AND A CITY 

TRAINING GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,300,000; AUTHORIZING 

THE CEO OF THE DIA TO NEGOTIATE THE TERMS OF THE 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AS NECESSARY FOR 

THE PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO INITIATE FILING 

LEGISLATION WITH THE CITY COUNCIL REGARDING THE SAME; 

AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA TO EXECUTE SUCH 

AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 288.075, Florida Statutes, allows certain confidentiality regarding 

economic development projects and the Company has requested confidentiality in accordance 

with such law; and  

 

WHEREAS, JAX USA has negotiated to retain the headquarters in Downtown 

Jacksonville and DIA staff has approved the Project and advised that the Economic Development 

Agreement is necessary to effectuate the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, Company has committed to investing not less than $20,000,000 towards 

capital improvements for the relocation of its corporate headquarters to a not-yet-finalized 

location which shall be located within the Southside CRA boundary and create over five years 

150 permanent full-time equivalent new jobs with such employment working primarily on-site in 

Downtown Jacksonville with an average salary, exclusive of benefits, of approximately 

$118,000, and retaining 650 jobs from within the local area to be located and working primarily 

on-site in Downtown Jacksonville; and 

 

WHEREAS, to assist the Company in its office relocation, creation of new jobs, and 

maintaining existing jobs, the DIA proposes to offer a package of incentives in conjunction with 

the City as further detailed in the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein by this reference; and 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

PAGE 2 OF 7 

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is authorized per section 

55.108 Economic Development of the City Ordinance Code, to utilize the Tax Increment Finance 

District Trust Funds to foster the redevelopment of the Southside Community Redevelopment 

Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the REV Grant annual payments will be funded through the Southside 

Downtown Tax Increment Finance District for a period not to exceed fifteen years; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding for the Target Industry Employment Grant and the City Training 

Grant will be provided by the City of Jacksonville, subject to documentation demonstrating 

satisfaction of employment and training commitments, 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 

 Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

 Section 2.  The DIA Board has determined that the Project is consistent with the 

following Community Redevelopment Area Plan Goals: 

 

(i) Redevelopment Goal No. 1: Increase commercial office utilization, occupancy, 

and job growth to reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business. 

(ii) Redevelopment Goal No. 8: Simplify and increase the efficiency of the approval 

process for Downtown development and improve departmental and agency 

coordination. 

 

 Section 3.  Authorizing the CEO to negotiate the terms of an economic development 

agreement authorizing the incentives as described above and as described in more detail in the 

Exhibit A Letter Preserving Inducement and additional terms as found in the Exhibit B Staff 

Report attached hereto.  

 

Section 4.  Authorizing the CEO to initiate legislation for approval by City Council of 

the Agreement and related documents authorizing the economic incentives authorized hereby.  

 

Section 5. Authorizing the CEO of the Downtown Investment Authority to execute 

said agreements subject to the terms as described above. 

 

Section 6.    This Resolution, 2024-10-06, shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

***** SIGNATURES ARE FOUND ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE ***** 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

PAGE 3 OF 7 

WITNESS:          DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

______________________ _______ 

Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chairman           Date 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

PAGE 4 OF 7 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

        



RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

PAGE 5 OF 7 

 

 

         



RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

PAGE 6 OF 7 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-04-11  

PROJECT BLUE SKY 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

The Project 

DIA staff has worked closely with JAXUSA and the COJ Office of Economic Development 

(“OED”) on Project Blue Sky, which is a confidential proposed project protected from full 

disclosure pursuant to section 288.075 Florida Statutes for a period of twelve months after the 

date of receipt of the confidentiality request (dated August 15, 2024), until the date specified in 

the Final Project Order, or until information is otherwise disclosed, whichever occurs first. This 

confidentiality request has been confirmed by the COJ Office of General Counsel, and 

accordingly only high-level information is provided in this Staff Report.  

 

The project represents the relocation of the international headquarters of a successful, established 

company to an office location in the Southbank district within the Southside Community 

Redevelopment Area of Downtown Jacksonville. The relocation will enable the company to 

maintain 650 FTE jobs and requires commitment to the creation of 150 new FTE jobs over five 

years (30 jobs per calendar year beginning January 2026). To meet this requirement, employees 

are required to work principally on site in the Downtown Jacksonville office location during their 

tenure of employment to count towards these goals. The projected annualized average wage of 

jobs being maintained, and new jobs created (excluding benefits) is $118,000. 

 

The firm commits to expending a minimum of $20 million in capital investment on construction 

and renovations at their new Downtown Jacksonville location in the Southbank district. They 

also propose to spend $10 million on computer equipment, office furniture, etc. as part of their 

move to this space.  

 

Incentives, as outlined below, are stated as playing a major role in making the decision to locate 

within Downtown Jacksonville after fielding requests for relocation from other municipalities. 

 

REV Grant 

Following construction and build-out of the firm’s new offices, the company will be eligible for 

a 75% Recaptured Enhanced Value Grant as authorized in the Public Investment Policy for a 

period of fifteen years with maximum indebtedness of $2,300,000. The REV will be paid on the 

increased ad valorem at the site above a base amount being received by the City currently in 

proportion to the occupied square footage of the firm as compared to the total square footage of 

the property. These amounts will be paid through the Southside Redevelopment Trust Fund, 

through its expiration, and the City of Jacksonville for any periods that remain beyond that 

expiration. Administration of the REV Grant will be managed by the DIA Compliance Officer 

consistent with other DIA REV Grant process and methodology. 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-06 

PAGE 7 OF 7 

 

Target Industry Employment Grant 

The firm will be eligible for a Target Industry Employment Grant in the maximum amount of 

$750,000 or $5,000 per job created meeting the salary and location requirements outlined above, 

with a maximum of 150 jobs over a period not to exceed five years. Funding for the Target 

Industry Employment Grant will be made through the City of Jacksonville and requires further 

approval by the Jacksonville City Council. Administration of the Target Industry Employment 

Grant will be managed through a Memorandum of Understanding with the COJ OED. 

 

City Training Grant 

The firm will be eligible for a City Training Grant in the maximum amount of $1,300,000 or 

$2,000 per job retained meeting the salary and location requirements outlined above, based on 

maintaining 650 jobs with training to occur over a two-year period and payoff of the Grant over 

four years. Funding for the Target Industry Employment Grant will be made through the City of 

Jacksonville and requires further approval by the Jacksonville City Council. Administration of 

the City Training Grant will be managed through a Memorandum of Understanding with the COJ 

OED. 

 

 

 

 

 

 





TAB III.D 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-01 INVESTDTJAX WEBSITE 





 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT OR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENT WITH DOWNTOWN 

VISION, INC. FOR THE UPDATE, MAINTENANCE AND HOSTING OF 

THE INVEST IN DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE WEBSITE 

(INVESTDTJAX.COM) IN FY 24-25; AUTHORIZING FUNDING IN THE 

AMOUNT OF EIGHTEEN THOUSAND AND ZERO DOLLARS 

($18,000.00) TO BE PAID TO DOWNTOWN VISION, INC. FOR THESE 

WEBSITE SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THESE FUNDS PARTIALLY 

FROM THE DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA TRUST FUND AND 

PARTIALLY FROM THE DOWNTOWN SOUTHSIDE CRA TRUST 

FUND’S MARKETING BUDGET; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority seeks to attract investment, facilitate 

job creation and increase residential density through capital investment, planning, marketing, and 

public-private partnerships including the provision of incentives; and 

 

WHEREAS, a tool to recruiting investors, developers and lenders to Downtown 

Jacksonville is an investor-focused website; and 

 

WHEREAS, DVI, in collaboration with the DIA, will continue to update and maintain 

the Investdtjax website throughout the year, ensuring all website content, plugins, etc. remain up-

to-date; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Investdtjax website was created with investors and developers in mind, 

offering valuable resources for those interested in bringing their business Downtown, and 

provides for:  

• comprehensive real estate database of Downtown properties available for sale or 

lease 

• valuable statistics on Downtown’s demographics, labor force and business 

• updates on DIA’s breadth of incentives 

• detailed information on recently completed, under construction and approved 

projects in Downtown Jacksonville, 
  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

Section 1.   The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO to take all actions necessary to 

effectuate the intent of this Resolution including execution of an agreement for services or 

functional equivalent.  

 

Section 2.  The DIA Board hereby expressly authorizes the use of $18,000 payable to 

Downtown Vision, Inc. for the updating, maintenance and hosting of the Investdtjax website in 

FY 24-25. Payment will be split equally between the Downtown Northbank CRA trust fund 

marketing budget and the Downtown Southside CRA trust fund marketing budget.  

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-01 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the 

Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

 

WITNESS:              DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________          

     Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair           Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 



TAB III.E 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-02 DIA PROPERTY DUE DILIGENCE 





 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) ACTING 

AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR THE COMBINED 

NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA, INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO DEVELOP A SOLICITION FOR DUE DILIGENCE 

SERVICES FOR THOSE PROPERTIES IDENTIFIED IN SECTION 2 OF THIS 

RESOLUTIONTHAT PROPERTY REFERRED TO AS THE “EAST LANDING LOT” AS 

MORE FULLY IDENTIFED ON EXHIBIT A, WITH THOSE SERVICES SOUGHT 

MORE FULLY IDENTIFIED IN EXHIBIT B, AND FURTHER SUBJECT TO FUNDING 

APPROVAL BY THE DIA BOARD; INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO IDENTIFY FUNDING SOURCES INCLUDING A DRAFT BUDGET TRANSFER FOR 

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIA BOARD AT ITS NOVEMBER 2024 BOARD MEETING; 

INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY 

ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority has identified that property bounded to the 

west by the Main Street Bridge, the east by the Hyatt Hotel, the south by the St. Johns River and 

the north by Independent Drive as a redevelopment parcel, as more fully illustrated on Exhibit A 

(“East Landing Lot”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority desires to undertake certain due diligence 

activities as identified in Exhibit B in advance of any property disposition, 

WHEREAS, Cross Regions has submitted various documents to DIA and requested that we enter 

into a negotiated disposition for the redevelopment of that property commonly referred to as the “East 

Landing Lot”, the location of which is shown on Exhibit A to this resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, in response to that request and the terms proposed by Cross Regions, on August 26th, 

2024, the Downtown Investment Authority held a workshop to discuss: 

  The adopted Property Disposition Processes;  

  The Cross Regions proposal;  

  East Landing Lot site overview; and 

   

WHEREAS, it was requested that staff provide further detail on East Landing Lot Due Diligence 

as well as Market – Property Optimization Study options and recommendations as the September 19th, 2024, 

DIA Board Meeting; and  

 

WHEREAS, staff provided a memorandum dated September 16th, 2024, outlining in further detail 

East Landing Lot Due Diligence and Market – Property Optimization Study options at the September 19th, 

2024, DIA Board Meeting, at which time it was recommended by the DIA Board Chair that further 

discussion should take place in a DIA Board Committee; and 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-02 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

2 

WHEREAS, after discussion at the October 10th, 2024, Retail Enhancement and Property 

Disposition Committee Meeting, the Committee recommended that the DIA Board authorize staff to solicit 

proposals for Due Diligence activities identified in Exhibit B for the following DIA properties, as shown 

on Exhibit A: 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that costs for Due Diligence efforts is estimated not to exceed 

$700,000, the funding of which is to be determined by the DIA Board at their November 2024 Board 

Meeting, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2.  The DIA instructs its Chief Executive Officer to seek solicitations for Due 

Diligence activities in accordance with Exhibit B for the East Landing Lot property identified in Exhibit A. 

following properties: 

Section 3. The DIA instructs its Chief Executive Officer to provide recommended funding 

sources, including draft Budget Transfers, at a DIA Budget and Finance Committee meeting in November 

for final action by the DIA Board at its November 2024 meeting. 

Section 4. The DIA authorizes its Chief Executive Officer to take all necessary action to 

effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective on the date of which it is signed by the DIA 

Board Chair. 

WITNESS:  DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

Witness Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair Date 

VOTE:    In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 



RIVERFRONT PLAZA
DEVELOPMENT 
SITE

EAST LANDING LOT

CITY HALL ANNEX
*ROFO

FORD ON BAY

RESTAURANT
PAD

FORD ON
BAY

BAY ST

FORSYTH ST

MA
RK

ET
 ST

NE
WN

AN
 ST

MA
IN

 ST
/U

S 1
7 (

SR
 5)

INDEPENDENT DR

HO
GA

N 
ST

LA
UR

A S
T

BAY ST/SR 15 (SR 228)

LIB
ER

TY
 ST

ADAMS ST (SR 228)

WATER ST (SR 228)

OC
EA

N 
ST

 (S
R 

5/2
28

)

¯RESOLUTION 2024-10-02
EXHIBIT A PAGE 3 OF 3

NOT TO SCALE
FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY



RESOLUTION 2024-10-02 
PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

The following Due Diligence Services will be procured through competitive solicitation. The services may 

be procured through a single solicitation for all services, or through multiple solicitations for discrete 

services. Additional services as may be recommended by the Office of General Council, the Department of 

Public Works, JEA or the Florida Department of Transportation may be included, provided that the services 

are consistent with and in furtherance of the intent of Resolution 2024-10-02.  

 

As to the East Landing Lot: 

 

I. Title Services 

II. Easement Confirmation – FDOT/Main Street Bridge 

• Environmental (Phase I) and geotechnical investigation  

• Title Search 

• Subsurface Utility Engineering (“SUE”) and physical (“soft dig”) utility locate confirmation 

 

III. Additionally, as part of Due Diligence, DIA will obtain estimates of costs for: 

 

• Main Street Bridge Ramp Removal: engineering and demolition (note: in 2020, costs estimated for 

design and demolition at $3,200,000) – updated cost estimates 

• JEA electrical duct bank relocation: design and relocation 

• Based on SUE Report and “soft dig” utility locate confirmation, cost estimates for design, 

demolition and relocation of utilities and infrastructure 

• The estimated cost of relocation of the JEA sanitary sewer line that parallels the Riverwalk to a 

location closer to the Riverwalk in order to maximize the size of the developable pad. 

 

As to Riverfront Plaza Development Site (Pad B): 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

As to City Hall Annex: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

As to Ford On Bay: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



TAB III.F 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 CORE RESIDENTIAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM 





 

RESOLUTION 2024 -10-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

ACTING AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“CRA”) 

OF THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AREA ADOPTING A NEW CORE RESIDENTIAL INCENTIVE 

PROGRAM APPICABLE TO A LIMITED GEOGRAPHIC AREA ON 

THE NOTHBANK AS DEFINED IN THE PROGRAM GUIDLEINES; 

INSTRUCTING ITS CEO TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS TO 

EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) has been designated by the 

City of Jacksonville as the Community Redevelopment Agency (“CRA”) for community 

redevelopment areas within the boundaries of Downtown; and,  

 

WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2014-0560, the City Council adopted a Community 

Redevelopment Plan and Business Investment and Development Strategy for Downtown 

Jacksonville (the “BID Plan”), as updated and amended by Ordinance 2022-0372; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Redevelopment Goal No. 2 as found in the BID Plan charges the DIA to 

“Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown ….”; and, 

 

WHEREAS, among the Strategic Objectives that support Redevelopment Goal No. 2 

and provide further action-oriented tasks by which the goal may be carried out include: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 8,140 built and occupied multi-family dwelling 

units by 2030; and strive to induce construction of 425 multifamily dwelling units 

per year, on average. 

• Improve the breadth and diversity of housing options across Downtown to 

provide all types, and varied price ranges, of rental and owner-occupied 

opportunities, including mixed income and mixed-use structures. 

• Contribute to resiliency in design and construction of new residential buildings, 

and flexibility in response to changing residential demand for unit sizes, home 

workspaces, amenities, and future conversion of parking; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Public Investment Policy dated June 28, 2016, as 

administratively updated most recently in March, 2024 (the “PIP”), states that, “Projects will be 

evaluated on whether they provide a return on investment (ROI) to the City. Projects will also be 

evaluated against standard underwriting criteria and an assessment of the public investment risk 

associated with the project.”; and, 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 2 OF 10 

 

WHEREAS, the PIP further provides that   “The success of Downtown Jacksonville is an 

important element of the City’s overall vitality.  In an effort to continue to attract new investment 

and businesses, a project could be given additional positive consideration if choosing a 

Downtown location.”; and  

 

WHEREAS, A Special Committee on the Future of Downtown was convened by City 

Council earlier this year and among the topics of discussion was the City Council’s desire to 

focus on redevelopment within the Northbank Core; and 

 

WHEREAS, Councilman Joe Carlucci outlined in broad terms a residential incentive 

program exclusively for a defined core of the Northbank that he had developed in consultation 

with numerous stakeholders; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA staff mapped the suggested area and has researched the residential 

potential, as well as likelihood, within the boundary of this defined “core”; and  

 

WHEREAS, DIA staff worked to develop a financial model and program guidelines to 

implement the suggested program and has vetted the same with several developers and their 

representatives as well as several Board members, consulted with Build Up Downtown, and 

presented this potential program to the Administration and Councilman Carlucci for review; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Core Residential Program consisting of the Core Residential Model 

and Core Residential Guidelines would provide, in addition to CRA funded REV grants, 

completion grants funded by the General Fund; and 

 

WHEREAS, DIA staff recommends that the DIA Board review and forward to City 

Council this Resolution adopting the Core Residential Program Model and Program Guidelines 

attached hereto as an additional incentive program available in the Combined Northbank CRA. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

Section 1.  The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 2.   The DIA hereby adopts the Core Residential Program consisting of the 

Core Residential Model and Program Guidelines attached hereto as an additional residential 

incentive program in the Northbank CRA, subject to such revisions as may be made by City 

Council thereto. 

 

Section 3.  The DIA recommends that City Council consider adoption of the Core 

Residential Program and funding of the completion grants contemplated by the Core Residential 

Program model and guidelines, either in lump sum annual amounts or as applications are 

received and processed. 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 3 OF 10 

 
 

Section 4.  The DIA hereby authorizes its CEO to take all actions necessary to 

effectuate the intent of this Resolution. 

 

Section 5.  This Resolution 2024-10-03 shall become effective on the date it is signed 

by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:         DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________             

     Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair             Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 4 OF 10 

 

14. Downtown Core Residential Program Guidelines 

 
The program is designed to generate rapid residential development within the core area of 
the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (the “Downtown Core”) 
defined as Broad Street to the west, State Street to the north, Liberty Street to the east, and 
the St. John’s River to the south. In the case of this program, the financial gap has been 
established on a comprehensive basis in context of development costs, capital 
requirements, and current and projected rent-growth in combination with fulfilling other 
economic development goals established in conjunction with the Jacksonville City 
Council, thereby eliminating the need for a financial gap analysis of projects that comply 
with the criteria below. 

This program is being made available for a limited time with finite funding as approved by 
the Jacksonville City Council, for the purpose of achieving greater residential density in the 
Downtown Core accompanied by increased retail and activated spaces to attract tenants, 
residents, and visitors into this area. 

To achieve these goals, the following parameters apply: 

• Only available within the specifically identified Downtown Core of the Downtown 
Northbank Community Redevelopment Area. 

• Created to accelerate residential growth through new property development and 
repositioning of underutilized properties. 

• Available for a limited time to pursue the stated goal of initiating the development 1,500 
additional housing units within mixed-use developments over a 3-year period. 

• Designed to reduce upfront development cost and minimize operating costs to attract 
qualified investors and developers. 

• In recognition of the overall synergistic benefits to the City of Jacksonville and the 
remainder of businesses and residential dwellings in Downtown Jacksonville, the ROI 
requirement established in the Public Investment Policy shall not be tested in 
consideration of individual project awards.  

• This Program combines a Completion Grant (paid out only at the issuance of a TCO 
allowing the property to be used for its intended purpose) along with a REV grant 
component paid over a maximum term of twenty years.  

• The program may not be used in conjunction the Downtown Preservation and Revitalization 
Program (DPRP) and owners of historic properties may use either program for rehabilitation 
purposes, so long as the historic nature of the property is not compromised as determined 
by the COJ Planning and Development Department. Façade Grants similarly may not be 
combined with either program. 

• Tenants in properties that have received a Completion Grant under the Downtown Core 
Residential Program are not eligible to apply for the funding under the Retail Enhancement 
Program nor the Commercial Revitalization program. 

o Option A – Could allow properties within the Hogan and Laura Focus to also receive 
Retail Enhancement FAB-REP incentive funding 

o Option B - Could allow all properties to also receive Retail Enhancement and 
Commercial Revitalization Programs for which they would be otherwise eligible. 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 5 OF 10 

 

 
 
 
 

PROGRAM GUIDELINES: 

• The table below indicates the maximum Completion Grant available to each new 
construction, rehabilitation, or repurposed mixed-use residential development activity 
undertaken in the  Downtown Core of the Northbank Downtown Jacksonville area. 

# of Residential Units Per 
Acre Per Unit 

16 to 40 $ 15,000 
41 to 75 $ 20,000 

76 to 175 $ 25,000 
176 to 400 (frame over 

podium) $ 25,000  
176-400 (Type 1 or Type 2) $35,000 

 
• To determine the number of residential units per acre, divide the minimum number of units 

to be developed by the parcel size converted to acres (total square feet of the development 
site as currently platted, regardless of other uses on the site, divided by 43,560).  

• The incentive amount per unit increases in a tiered, progressive approach meaning each 
tier is additive to the previous tier(s). So, a 50-unit development would be eligible for 
($15,000 X 40) = $600,000 plus ($20,000 X 10) = $200,000 equals $800,000 or $16,000 per 
unit. 

• An exception to the aggregation approach is for the tier that is 176 units or greater per acre. 
That tier anticipates Type 1 or Type 2 construction techniques and is awarded a base rate of 
$35,000 per unit when that condition is true and remains eligible for bonuses for 2- or 3-
bedroom units as shown below. If not using Type 1 or Type 2 construction, the projects 
would be eligible for funding at a base rate of $25,000 per unit.  

• Project of ten stories or more using Type 1 or Type 2 construction techniques may also 
consider application using the 30-year high-rise underwriting methodology approved by the 
DIA Board in resolution 2024-05-04. 

• SIZE BONUS 1 - This calculation establishes a base level payout for studio and one-
bedroom units. Two-bedroom units receive a multiple of 1.5X the base amount and three or 
more bedrooms receive 2X the base amount. 

• AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING BONUS - An affordable/workforce boost not to 
exceed more than 20% of total units is provided to encourage production of those units 
produced with rents capped at the Florida Housing Finance Corporation limits for tenants 
of Duval County making not more than 80% or 120% of Area Median Income (“AMI”). These 
are a proportion of the total and not additional units and require the recording of a Land Use 
Restriction Agreement (“LURA”) for a period of not less than 30 years. 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 6 OF 10 

 
   

Affordable/Workforce Boost    
   AMI 

# of 
Bedrooms 80% 120% 

1 $ 15,000 $ 12,500 
2 $ 22,500 $ 17,500 

Max % 20.0% 20.0% 
 

• Riverfront, creekfront, or those developments immediately adjacent to the Emerald Trail  
are not eligible for Affordable/Workforce Housing Bonus. Once a total of 400 
affordable/workforce units have been awarded this boost, it will no longer be eligible on 
other development projects unless the cap is further approved by the Jacksonville City 
Council. 

• REV CRITERIA – Applicants qualifying for this program, including the retail criteria, will be 
eligible for a REV grant as determined by the criteria found in the Multifamily REV Grant 
Program Guidelines. 

• SIZE BONUS 2 - Projects providing 20% or more units with 2 or more-bedrooms, including 
not less than 5% of total units comprised of 3 bedrooms or more, are eligible for 
accelerated Recapture Enhanced Value (“REV”) payments as outlined below. The 
percentage shown is applied against the REV percentage that the project would otherwise 
qualify for under the Multifamily REV Grant Guidelines. 

REV Payout Percentage (Accelerated) 

YEARS 1-2 3-4 5-6 7-15 16-20 

REV % 125% 115% 110% 100% .85% 

 

• RETAIL REQUIREMENTS - To be eligible for funding under the Downtown Core Residential 
Program, all developments must adhere to the Retail Minimum Requirements as outlined 
below. 

New or Existing Properties:  

• The City’s Zoning Code, Subpart H- Downtown Overlay Zone and Downtown District use 
and form regulations serve as the minimum requirements and are not waived by these 
requirements. However, these requirements pertain to the development of new 
properties, or the rehabilitation or repurpose of an existing property, where feasible, 
that seek funding under the Downtown Core Residential Program within the defined 
boundary as shown on the Exhibit A map attached. 

• Development or redevelopment of such properties must adhere to the following to be 
eligible for funding.  



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 7 OF 10 

 
o Cannot decrease or convert any existing first-floor retail location to non-retail 

uses (rehabilitation or repurposing of existing properties). 
o The map attached identifies streets as being Primary (red), Secondary (yellow), 

or Tertiary (blue).  
o Primary street frontages must have 70% or more Retail frontage. 
o Secondary street frontages must have 50% or more Retail which may be 

expanded to include Active, Commercial, and Office as captured herein.  
o Tertiary street frontages have no minimum retail requirement except as may 

otherwise be required by Chapter 656, Part 3, Subpart H, Jacksonville Code of 
Ordinances and to the greatest extent possible should be used for service 
entrances, utilities, and loading and unloading.  

▪ When a development has three or more street frontages 
▪ When a development has three frontages and no alley or rear access  

o All retail frontages shall have a depth of not less than 50 feet. 
o Exceptions to the minimums established above include ingress/egress to 

interior spaces or floors above, vehicular access in and out of a garage, utility 
easements, loading docks and zones, and others as approved by the DIA in its 
sole discretion. Frontages on historic properties protected by a façade 
easement or limitations provided to maintain historic features also supersede 
these requirements. 

o Existing agreements or approvals (beyond compliance with minimum 
Downtown Overlay Zone requirements) supersede these requirements. 

o New parking garages (public or private) with frontages on the Emerald Trail and 
in the FAB REP boundary must provide 100% non-parking active use or Urban 
Open Space along such street frontages less garage entrances.  

o Within the Cathedral Hill neighborhood, the above minimum requirements on 
Secondary or Tertiary streets may be satisfied by institutional uses (e.g. church, 
school). 

 

For purposes of this program, the following shall apply: 

• Retail   
1) Businesses that sell products on a transactional basis to end consumers; or 
2) Food and beverage establishments; or  
3) Providers of services targeted towards the general public (other than health 

care, legal, or financial advisory); or  
4) Businesses operating exclusively or primarily on a membership or appointment 

basis and not welcoming walk-in customers, or providing goods and services 
targeted principally to other businesses, shall not generally meet this definition, 
unless approved on a case-by-case basis. 

• Commercial – Business to business operations, legal or financial advisory services, 
healthcare, rental offices, membership-oriented businesses. 

• Active – Urban Open Space, vehicular drop-off, stoop entrances to dwelling units, 
daycare centers, fitness centers, business centers, and leasing offices, or similar 
spaces in multifamily properties with windows facing the street. 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 8 OF 10 

 

• Office – Space utilized for the operations of a private or public business at least five 
days per week where the public may or may not have access depending on the specific 
use. 

• Primary – Existing or desired high traffic streets, especially pedestrian (red) 
• Secondary – Medium to high traffic streets (yellow) 
• Tertiary – In limited circumstances, as noted above and in expressly residential areas 

(blue) 
 

ADDITIONAL UNDERWRITING CRITERIA: 

• Any completion grant may not exceed 25% of hard costs plus costs for architecture and 
engineering but shall not include acquisition costs and may not exceed 65% of Developer’s 
Equity. The total of all city Incentives may not exceed 100% of Developer’s Equity. (Equity 
definition as found in R2024-05-04 applies here also). 

• The 176 to 400 tier contemplates Type 1 or Type 2 construction between eight and nine 
floors in height (including garage) but may also include any building above that height but 
not satisfying criteria for the High-Rise model. Anything above this height limitation (10 
stories or more) would revert to the program structure of the High-Rise model approved in 
R2024-05-04. 

• To be eligible for this funding, properties immediately adjacent to the river, creek, or the 
Emerald Trail must provide a minimum 3,000 square feet of restaurant or retail space 
directly accessible to the public from the Riverwalk, at the street level, or on the rooftop or 
similar height advantaged location as approved by the RE&PD Committee and DIA Board. 

• Applicants, including the development team, must demonstrate requisite experience and 
proven success in the development and operation of properties similar to those being 
proposed including construction, leasing and management activities, access to capital and 
other qualifications that provide a high level of confidence that, following necessary 
financing approvals, the project will move forward quickly with final design, engineering, 
and other steps necessary to commence construction. 

 
GRANT PROCESS:  

1. Applicant to complete the project profile assessment , any associated 
application, and provide additional project information as required at the 
bottom of that form or as may be requested. 

2. The DIA staff will review and analyze the application from the prospective grantee, and 
make a recommendation based upon the Downtown Core Residential Program criteria 
above.  

3. The DIA Board will evaluate the staff analysis and reject or adopt a resolution 
approving a grant amount and time frame to be documented by a 
Redevelopment Agreement agreed to by the Applicant and executed by the 
Applicant and DIA. 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 9 OF 10 

 

4. City Council approval is not required for Downtown Core Residential Program 
grants which comply with this program and DIA action is final.  

5. No Downtown Core Residential Program grants shall be authorized by the 
Board that exceed the term, amount determined pursuant to the criteria above, 
or otherwise fail to meet the program criteria described above. 

6. Each recipient of a Downtown Core Residential Program grant must agree to 
promote Downtown activities and events organized by the City to its residents 
using electronic or static bulletin boards, newsletters, emails, and/or other 
standardized methods of internal communication. 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 

PAGE 10 OF 10 

 

EXHIBIT A – BOUNDARY AND STREET DESIGNATION MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-03 CORE RESIDENTIAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
PROGRAM MODEL





   Parcel Size in Square Feet

   Number of Dwelling Units Proposed

   Number of Equivalent Units Per Acre

   Type 1 or Type 2 Construction?

Per Unit Per Tier Aggregate

16 to 40 15,000     600,000       600,000           15,000              

41 to 75 20,000     700,000       1,300,000        17,333              

76 to 175 25,000     2,500,000    3,800,000        21,714              

176 to 400 21,714     8,685,714    8,685,714        21,714              

80 120

1 15,000$   12,500$       

2 22,500$   17,500$       

20.0% 20.0%

* Overall Limit of 20% Affordable/Workforce Units Per Building

Maximum Payout Per Unit Total

Number of Units Per Acre 88 18,466$           1,625,000$       

Two BR Units 20.0% 18 9,233$             166,193$                   Completion Grant with no Affordable/Workforce Boost

Three BR Units 10.0% 9 18,466$           166,193$          

120% AMI Boost 10.0% 8 18,750$           150,000$          

80% AMI Boost 10.0% 8 15,000$           120,000$          

25,311$           2,227,386$       

Per Unit Cost Assumption 322,851$          

Total Development Cost 16,142,550$     

Hard Costs plus A&E (excluding acquisition) 75.00% 12,106,913$     

Proposed Equity 35.00% 5,649,893$       

Total Completion Grant 1,266,000$       

Percentage of Developer Equity 22.4%

Percentage of Hard Costs + A/E 10.5%

Percentage of TDC 7.8%

REV TYPE

REV Grant $2,041,000 Traditional 20

Percentage of Total Incentives/Developer Equity 58.5%

Total Incentives 3,307,000$       

25,000

50

88

No

Residential Density Model

# of Units

Per Acre

Max Per Unit 

Blended

Assumes a 50/50 blend of 1- and 2-br A/WF units.

Affordable/Workforce 

Boost      

AMI

# of Bedrooms

Max %



PROJECT NAME:
DEVELOPER:

-$           Million in Capital Expenditures

Ad Valorem Taxes Generated
County Operating Millage (1) 2,855,000$          

Local Option Sales Tax (2) -$                      

Payroll (3) -$                      

Add'l Benefits Provided (4) -$                      
Total City Expected Benefits 2,855,000$      

Total City Investment (5) 3,307,000$      

Return on Investment Ratio 0.86

(1) - The investment from the Company is estimated to be $___________ in Capital Contribution for development
         and $_______ in taxable Tangible Personal Property
(2) - Local Option Sales Tax is based on the revenue generated through retail sales, food and beverage,
        and commercial leases.
(3) - Job estimates are calculated at # of jobs * avg. wage.  Assumes 20% spent locally and
         a 1 percent sales tax over 20 years. 
(4) - Value of any additional contribution being made for the benefit of the city in consideration of the incentive

(5) - City Incentives as follows:
REV 2,041,000$          
Land -$                      
(Other) 1,266,000$          
Total Direct Incentives 3,307,000$          

NOTE: 
             



Project Name:

Project Owner: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority

Estimation of Tax Revenues

PROJECT NAME:

DEVELOPER:

1$                            2 3 4 5 6 7 8$                            9

2022/2023 Millage Rates STABILIZED

Initial Year

1 Assets Value 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

2

3 Land (1) 375,000$                382,500$                390,150$                397,953$                405,912$                414,030$                422,311$                430,757$                439,372$                448,160$                

4 Construction Costs (2) 12,106,913$          12,106,913$          12,349,051$          12,596,032$          12,847,952$          13,104,911$          13,367,010$          13,634,350$          13,907,037$          14,185,178$          

5 Other Renovations (Taxable) -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

6 Total Land and Buildings 12,481,913$          12,489,413$          12,739,201$          12,993,985$          13,253,864$          13,518,942$          13,789,321$          14,065,107$          14,346,409$          14,633,337$          

7

8 Assess. Assumption (3) 85.00% 10,616,001$          10,828,321$          11,044,887$          11,265,785$          11,491,100$          11,720,922$          11,955,341$          12,194,448$          12,438,337$          

9 Growth Assumption 2.00%

10

11 Less: Assessed Value Per COJ Property Appraiser (4) 375,000$                (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               

12

13 Incremental Value of Real Property 10,241,001$          10,453,321$          10,669,887$          10,890,785$          11,116,100$          11,345,922$          11,580,341$          11,819,448$          12,063,337$          

14

15 TPP (Group Property by Econ Life)

18  5 (T) (5) 150,000$                127,500$                103,500$                93,600$                  66,300$                  45,195$                  27,000$                  21,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  

24  10 (T) 150,000$                138,000$                126,000$                136,800$                130,650$                113,970$                99,225$                  81,900$                  64,800$                  51,480$                  

29 Last Revised 3-5-2024

30

31 Total Incremental Value Generated 10,506,501$          10,682,821$          10,900,287$          11,087,735$          11,275,265$          11,472,147$          11,683,241$          11,899,248$          12,129,817$          

32

33 2023 Approved Millages

34 County Operating Millage (6) 11.3169% 118,901$                120,896$                123,357$                125,479$                127,601$                129,829$                132,218$                134,663$                137,272$                

35 County Debt Serv. Millage (6) 0.0000% -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

36 School Bd. Operating Millage (6) 6.4310% 67,567$                  68,701$                  70,100$                  71,305$                  72,511$                  73,777$                  75,135$                  76,524$                  78,007$                  

37 School Bd. Debt Ser. Millage (6) 0.0000% -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

38 Urban Service District 1 Millage (6) 0.0000% -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

39 St. John's Water Mgt. Millage (6) 0.1793% 1,884$                    1,915$                    1,954$                    1,988$                    2,022$                    2,057$                    2,095$                    2,134$                    2,175$                    

40 FL. Inland Navigation Millage (6) 0.0288% 303$                        308$                        314$                        319$                        325$                        330$                        336$                        343$                        349$                        

41 Total Ad Valorem Taxes 17.9560% 188,655$                191,821$                195,726$                199,091$                202,459$                205,994$                209,784$                213,663$                217,803$                

42

43 County Ad Valorem Taxes (Real Property Only ) 115,896$                118,299$                120,750$                123,250$                125,800$                128,401$                131,054$                133,760$                136,520$                

44 4% Discount for Nov. Payment 4,636$                    4,732$                    4,830$                    4,930$                    5,032$                    5,136$                    5,242$                    5,350$                    5,461$                    

45 Incremental Ad ValoremTax Increase 111,261$                113,567$                115,920$                118,320$                120,768$                123,265$                125,811$                128,409$                131,059$                

46

47 Grant Percent: 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00%

48 NPV

49 Applicable Grant $816,423 $83,445 $85,175 $86,940 $88,740 $90,576 $92,448 $94,359 $96,307 $98,294

(1) - Use existing land value provided by property appraiser if available.

(2) - Construction costs is generally limited to hard costs as provided plus A&E and other soft costs deemed to directly contribute to value of the property.

(3) - Reduces the value of the improves by 15% to account for selling costs, consistent with property appraiser methodology. Land is already discounted if using existing value.

(4) - Use the full assessed value even if a building is being taken down on the site or if the property is not currently on the tax roll.

(5) - Generally split F,F,&E plus tenant improvements 50% five year and 50% 10 year, this only contributes to City benefit per the PIP and is not captured in the REV payout.

(6) - 2023 Millage Rates

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/millage-rates/2023-final-millage-chart.aspx

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

125.00% 125.00% 115.00% 115.00% 110.00% 110.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

NPV

The impact on NPV is 6% $866,702 $104,307 $106,469 $99,981 $102,051 $99,633 $101,693 $94,359 $96,307 $98,294

Discount rate 10.0% $20,861 $21,294 $13,041 $13,311 $9,058 $9,245 $0 $0 $0

0

0



Project Name:

Project Owner: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority

Estimation of Tax Revenues

PROJECT NAME:

DEVELOPER:

2022/2023 Millage Rates

Initial

Assets Value

Land (1) 375,000$                

Construction Costs (2) 12,106,913$          

Other Renovations (Taxable) -$                         

Total Land and Buildings 12,481,913$          

Assess. Assumption (3) 85.00%

Growth Assumption 2.00%

Less: Assessed Value Per COJ Property Appraiser (4) 375,000$                

Incremental Value of Real Property

TPP (Group Property by Econ Life)

 5 (T) (5) 150,000$                

 10 (T) 150,000$                

Last Revised 3-5-2024

Total Incremental Value Generated

2023 Approved Millages

County Operating Millage (6) 11.3169%

County Debt Serv. Millage (6) 0.0000%

School Bd. Operating Millage (6) 6.4310%

School Bd. Debt Ser. Millage (6) 0.0000%

Urban Service District 1 Millage (6) 0.0000%

St. John's Water Mgt. Millage (6) 0.1793%

FL. Inland Navigation Millage (6) 0.0288%

Total Ad Valorem Taxes 17.9560%

County Ad Valorem Taxes (Real Property Only )

4% Discount for Nov. Payment

Incremental Ad ValoremTax Increase

Grant Percent:

NPV

Applicable Grant $816,423

(1) - Use existing land value provided by property appraiser if available.

(2) - Construction costs is generally limited to hard costs as provided plus A&E and other soft costs deemed to directly contribute to value of the property.

(3) - Reduces the value of the improves by 15% to account for selling costs, consistent with property appraiser methodology. Land is already discounted if using existing value.

(4) - Use the full assessed value even if a building is being taken down on the site or if the property is not currently on the tax roll.

(5) - Generally split F,F,&E plus tenant improvements 50% five year and 50% 10 year, this only contributes to City benefit per the PIP and is not captured in the REV payout.

(6) - 2023 Millage Rates

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/millage-rates/2023-final-millage-chart.aspx

NPV

The impact on NPV is 6% $866,702

Discount rate 10.0%

0

0

10 11

2033 2034

457,123$                466,265$                

14,468,881$          14,758,259$          

-$                         -$                         

14,926,004$          15,224,524$          

12,687,103$          12,940,846$          

(375,000)$               (375,000)$               

12,312,103$          12,565,846$          

15,000$                  15,000$                  

44,730$                  30,000$                  

12,371,833$          12,610,846$          

140,011$                142,716$                

-$                         -$                         

79,563$                  81,100$                  

-$                         -$                         

-$                         -$                         

2,218$                    2,261$                    

356$                        363$                        

222,149$                226,440$                

139,335$                142,206$                

5,573$                    5,688$                    

133,761$                136,518$                

75.00% 75.00%

$100,321 $102,389

10 11

100.00% 100.00%

$100,321 $102,389

$0 $0



Project Name:

Project Owner: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority

Estimation of Tax Revenues

PROJECT NAME:

DEVELOPER:

2022/2023 Millage Rates

Initial

Assets Value

Land (1) 375,000$                

Construction Costs (2) 12,106,913$          

Other Renovations (Taxable) -$                         

Total Land and Buildings 12,481,913$          

Assess. Assumption (3) 85.00%

Growth Assumption 2.00%

Less: Assessed Value Per COJ Property Appraiser (4) 375,000$                

Incremental Value of Real Property

TPP (Group Property by Econ Life)

 5 (T) (5) 150,000$                

 10 (T) 150,000$                

Last Revised 3-5-2024

Total Incremental Value Generated

2023 Approved Millages

County Operating Millage (6) 11.3169%

County Debt Serv. Millage (6) 0.0000%

School Bd. Operating Millage (6) 6.4310%

School Bd. Debt Ser. Millage (6) 0.0000%

Urban Service District 1 Millage (6) 0.0000%

St. John's Water Mgt. Millage (6) 0.1793%

FL. Inland Navigation Millage (6) 0.0288%

Total Ad Valorem Taxes 17.9560%

County Ad Valorem Taxes (Real Property Only )

4% Discount for Nov. Payment

Incremental Ad ValoremTax Increase

Grant Percent:

NPV

Applicable Grant $816,423

(1) - Use existing land value provided by property appraiser if available.

(2) - Construction costs is generally limited to hard costs as provided plus A&E and other soft costs deemed to directly contribute to value of the property.

(3) - Reduces the value of the improves by 15% to account for selling costs, consistent with property appraiser methodology. Land is already discounted if using existing value.

(4) - Use the full assessed value even if a building is being taken down on the site or if the property is not currently on the tax roll.

(5) - Generally split F,F,&E plus tenant improvements 50% five year and 50% 10 year, this only contributes to City benefit per the PIP and is not captured in the REV payout.

(6) - 2023 Millage Rates

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/millage-rates/2023-final-millage-chart.aspx

NPV

The impact on NPV is 6% $866,702

Discount rate 10.0%

0

0

12 13 14 15$                          16 17 18 19 20

2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 Totals

475,591$                485,102$                494,805$                504,701$                514,795$                525,091$                535,592$                546,304$                557,230$                

15,053,424$          15,354,492$          15,661,582$          15,974,814$          16,294,310$          16,620,196$          16,952,600$          17,291,652$          17,637,485$          

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

15,529,015$          15,839,595$          16,156,387$          16,479,515$          16,809,105$          17,145,287$          17,488,193$          17,837,957$          18,194,716$          

13,199,662$          13,463,656$          13,732,929$          14,007,587$          14,287,739$          14,573,494$          14,864,964$          15,162,263$          15,465,508$          

(375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               (375,000)$               

12,824,662$          13,088,656$          13,357,929$          13,632,587$          13,912,739$          14,198,494$          14,489,964$          14,787,263$          15,090,508$          

15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  

27,000$                  24,000$                  21,000$                  18,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  15,000$                  

12,866,662$          13,127,656$          13,393,929$          13,665,587$          13,942,739$          14,228,494$          14,519,964$          14,817,263$          15,120,508$          

145,611$                148,564$                151,578$                154,652$                157,789$                161,022$                164,321$                167,685$                171,117$                2,855,283$             

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

82,746$                  84,424$                  86,136$                  87,883$                  89,666$                  91,503$                  93,378$                  95,290$                  97,240$                  1,622,558$             

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

2,307$                    2,354$                    2,402$                    2,450$                    2,500$                    2,551$                    2,603$                    2,657$                    2,711$                    45,238$                  

371$                        378$                        386$                        394$                        402$                        410$                        418$                        427$                        435$                        7,266$                    

231,034$                235,720$                240,501$                245,379$                250,356$                255,487$                260,720$                266,059$                271,504$                4,530,344$             

145,135$                148,123$                151,170$                154,279$                157,449$                160,683$                163,981$                167,346$                170,778$                

5,805$                    5,925$                    6,047$                    6,171$                    6,298$                    6,427$                    6,559$                    6,694$                    6,831$                    

139,330$                142,198$                145,124$                148,107$                151,151$                154,256$                157,422$                160,652$                163,947$                2,720,846$             

75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00%

$104,498 $106,649 $108,843 $111,081 $113,363 $115,692 $118,067 $120,489 $122,960 $2,040,634

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 85.00% 85.00% 85.00% 85.00% 85.00%

$104,498 $106,649 $108,843 $111,081 $96,359 $98,338 $100,357 $102,416 $104,516 $2,038,858

$0 $0 $0 $0 ($17,005) ($17,354) ($17,710) ($18,073) ($18,444) ($1,776)



Project Name:

Project Owner: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority

Estimation of Tax Revenues

PROJECT NAME:

DEVELOPER:

2022/2023 Millage Rates

Initial

Assets Value

Land (1) 375,000$                

Construction Costs (2) 12,106,913$          

Other Renovations (Taxable) -$                         

Total Land and Buildings 12,481,913$          

Assess. Assumption (3) 85.00%

Growth Assumption 2.00%

Less: Assessed Value Per COJ Property Appraiser (4) 375,000$                

Incremental Value of Real Property

TPP (Group Property by Econ Life)

 5 (T) (5) 150,000$                

 10 (T) 150,000$                

Last Revised 3-5-2024

Total Incremental Value Generated

2023 Approved Millages

County Operating Millage (6) 11.3169%

County Debt Serv. Millage (6) 0.0000%

School Bd. Operating Millage (6) 6.4310%

School Bd. Debt Ser. Millage (6) 0.0000%

Urban Service District 1 Millage (6) 0.0000%

St. John's Water Mgt. Millage (6) 0.1793%

FL. Inland Navigation Millage (6) 0.0288%

Total Ad Valorem Taxes 17.9560%

County Ad Valorem Taxes (Real Property Only )

4% Discount for Nov. Payment

Incremental Ad ValoremTax Increase

Grant Percent:

NPV

Applicable Grant $816,423

(1) - Use existing land value provided by property appraiser if available.

(2) - Construction costs is generally limited to hard costs as provided plus A&E and other soft costs deemed to directly contribute to value of the property.

(3) - Reduces the value of the improves by 15% to account for selling costs, consistent with property appraiser methodology. Land is already discounted if using existing value.

(4) - Use the full assessed value even if a building is being taken down on the site or if the property is not currently on the tax roll.

(5) - Generally split F,F,&E plus tenant improvements 50% five year and 50% 10 year, this only contributes to City benefit per the PIP and is not captured in the REV payout.

(6) - 2023 Millage Rates

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/millage-rates/2023-final-millage-chart.aspx

NPV

The impact on NPV is 6% $866,702

Discount rate 10.0%

0

0

0%



Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority 

Net Present Value of Proposed Grants

Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative

1 2024 118,901$                 118,901$           83,445$             83,445$             104,307$           104,307$           20,861$             25.0%

2 2025 120,896$                 239,797$           85,175$             168,621$           106,469$           210,776$           42,155$             25.0%

3 2026 123,357$                 363,155$           86,940$             255,561$           99,981$             310,757$           55,196$             21.6%

4 2027 125,479$                 488,634$           88,740$             344,301$           102,051$           412,808$           68,507$             19.9%

5 2028 127,601$                 616,235$           90,576$             434,877$           99,633$             512,441$           77,565$             17.8%

6 2029 129,829$                 746,064$           92,448$             527,325$           101,693$           614,135$           86,810$             16.5%

7 2030 132,218$                 878,282$           94,359$             621,684$           94,359$             708,493$           86,810$             14.0%

8 2031 134,663$                 1,012,945$       96,307$             717,991$           96,307$             804,800$           86,810$             12.1%

9 2032 137,272$                 1,150,216$       98,294$             816,285$           98,294$             903,094$           86,810$             10.6%

10 2033 140,011$                 1,290,227$       100,321$           916,606$           100,321$           1,003,415$       86,810$             9.5%

11 2034 142,716$                 1,432,943$       102,389$           1,018,994$       102,389$           1,105,804$       86,810$             8.5%

12 2035 145,611$                 1,578,554$       104,498$           1,123,492$       104,498$           1,210,301$       86,810$             7.7%

13 2036 148,564$                 1,727,118$       106,649$           1,230,140$       106,649$           1,316,950$       86,810$             7.1%

14 2037 151,578$                 1,878,696$       108,843$           1,338,983$       108,843$           1,425,793$       86,810$             6.5%

15 2038 154,652$                 2,033,348$       111,081$           1,450,064$       111,081$           1,536,873$       86,810$             6.0%

16 2039 157,789$                 2,191,136$       113,363$           1,563,427$       96,359$             1,633,232$       69,805$             4.5%

17 2040 161,022$                 2,352,159$       115,692$           1,679,119$       98,338$             1,731,570$       52,451$             3.1%

18 2041 164,321$                 2,516,480$       118,067$           1,797,185$       100,357$           1,831,927$       34,741$             1.9%

19 2042 167,685$                 2,684,165$       120,489$           1,917,674$       102,416$           1,934,342$       16,668$             0.9%

20 2043 171,117$                 2,855,283$       122,960$           2,040,634$       104,516$           2,038,858$       (1,776)$              -0.1%

TOTALS 2,855,283$              2,040,634$       2,038,858$       

ROUNDED 2,855,000$              2,041,000$       2,039,000$       

71.5% 71.4%

Difference 

Outflows AcceleratedOutflows TraditionalInflows Cumulative



YR Retail Sales Food & Bev Comm'l Lease

1 0
2 0 0 0
3 0 0 0
4 0 0 0
5 0 0 0
6 0 0 0
7 0 0 0
8 0 0 0
9 0 0 0

10 0 0 0
11 0 0 0
12 0 0 0
13 0 0 0
14 0 0 0
15 0 0 0
16 0 0 0
17 0 0 0
18 0 0 0
19 0 0 0
20 0 0 0

Total -$                       -$                        -$                        

Annual Growth Rate

1% Sales Tax -$                       -$                        -$                        
Local Option Sales Tax - Duval County -$                        

* Unless otherwise discussed, Local Option Sales Tax should only be included if leases have been negotiated with tenants.
* Tiers eligible developments may qualify for inclusion of  limited LOST estimated for a ten year period.

Est. Taxable Revenue from Each Source



ASSUMPTIONS
Percentage of wages spent on taxable transaction: 20.0%
Local Option Sales tax 1.0%
Number of years: 20

Retail Jobs (assumes 2 jobs per 1000 sqft. retail space)
Payroll Induced Taxes (Company)

Retail Square Footage
Employment 0
Avg. Wage -$                
Total Payroll -$                

Retail Payroll Induced Taxes (Company) -$               

Office/Commercial Jobs (assumes 5 jobs per 1000 sqft. office space)
Payroll Induced Taxes (Company)

Retail Square Footage
Employment 0
Avg. Wage -$                
Total Payroll -$                

Office/Commercial Payroll Induced Taxes (Company) -$               

Hotel/Hospitality Jobs
Payroll Induced Taxes (Company)
  Employment
  Avg. Wage
  Total Payroll -$                

Hotel/ Hospitality Payroll Induced Taxes (Company) -$               

TOTAL PAYROLL RELATED SALES TAX BENEFIT -$               

* Unless otherwise discussed, jobs should only be included if leases have been negotiated with tenants.
* Tiers eligible developments may qualify for inclusion of  limited induced tax benefits estimated for a ten year period.



2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2 (T) 50.00% 30.00% 20.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

 4 (PC) 83.00% 65.00% 43.00% 24.00% 18.00% 14.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
 5 (T) 85.00% 69.00% 62.40% 44.20% 30.13% 18.00% 14.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
 6 (T) 87.00% 73.00% 68.40% 53.30% 39.30% 31.05% 19.00% 13.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

 6 (MF) 87.00% 73.00% 57.00% 41.00% 30.00% 23.00% 19.00% 13.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
7 (T) 89.00% 76.00% 74.40% 62.40% 48.47% 37.80% 32.20% 20.00% 17.00% 14.00% 11.00%
 8 (T) 90.00% 79.00% 80.40% 70.20% 56.33% 44.55% 36.40% 31.68% 20.00% 17.00% 14.00%
 9 (T) 91.00% 82.00% 86.40% 79.30% 66.81% 55.35% 46.20% 37.44% 31.46% 20.00% 17.00%

 10 (T) 92.00% 84.00% 91.20% 87.10% 75.98% 66.15% 54.60% 43.20% 34.32% 29.82% 20.00%
 12 (T) 94.00% 87.00% 96.00% 94.90% 86.46% 78.30% 70.00% 61.92% 51.48% 41.18% 34.80%
 15 (T) 95.00% 90.00% 102.00% 102.70% 95.63% 91.80% 86.80% 79.20% 70.07% 61.06% 53.65%
 20 (T) 97.00% 93.00% 108.00% 111.80% 107.42% 105.30% 103.60% 100.80% 92.95% 85.20% 79.75%
 30 (T) 98.00% 97.00% 114.00% 120.90% 119.21% 120.15% 120.40% 120.96% 117.26% 112.18% 110.20%

Last Revised 3-5-2024

https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/docs/2024-present-worth-table-general-ada.aspx

Tammy Dumm Property Appraiser Office 904-630-3402

https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/docs/2024-present-worth-table-general-ada.aspx


2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
11.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
14.00% 11.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
18.00% 16.00% 14.00% 12.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
32.12% 20.00% 17.00% 14.00% 11.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
45.26% 39.00% 35.65% 32.55% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
73.00% 67.50% 62.00% 54.25% 49.29% 44.28% 41.76% 39.60% 40.95% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%

108.04% 106.50% 105.40% 100.75% 96.99% 95.12% 93.96% 91.80% 91.65% 87.29% 82.40% 76.96% 71.74%



1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
66.03% 59.92% 53.75% 50.14% 48.62% 48.09% 20.00%



https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/docs/2019-economic-life-guide.aspx

Last Revised 3-5-2024

https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser/docs/2019-economic-life-guide.aspx








TAB III.G 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-07 MARKET AND PROPERTY OPTIMIZATION STUDY 





RESOLUTION 2024-10-07 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) ACTING 

AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR THE COMBINED 

NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA, INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO DEVELOP A SCOPE OF SERVICES, SCORING CRITERIA 

AND MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS FOR SELECTION OF A CONSULTANT TO 

PREPARE A MARKET – LAND USE OPTIMIZATION STUDY FOR THE AREA 

IDENTIFIED ON EXHIBIT A; FURTHER INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER TO PROVIDE THE AFOREMENTIONED FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE 

DIA BOARD AT ITS NOVEMBER 2024 BOARD MEETING; INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO IDENTIFY FUNDING SOURCES INCLUDING A DRAFT 

BUDGET TRANSFER FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE DIA BOARD AT ITS 

NOVEMBER 2024 BOARD MEETING; INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES 

OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, The DIA has previously issued notices of disposition seeking proposals for 

redevelopment of the Riverfront Plaza Development Site (Pad B) and the Ford on Bay development parcel; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Cross Regions has submitted various documents to DIA and requested that DIA enter 

into a negotiated disposition for the redevelopment of that property commonly referred to as the “East 

Landing Lot”; and 

 

WHEREAS, on July 24, 2024, the Downtown Investment Authority held a workshop to discuss 

the disposition schedule and criteria for riverfront parcels in DIA inventory including the East Landing 

Lot; and   

WHEREAS, in response to the terms proposed by Cross Regions, on August 26th 2024 the 

Downtown Investment Authority held an additional workshop to discuss: 

 

  The adopted Property Disposition Processes;  

  The Cross Regions proposal;  

  East Landing Lot site overview; and 

 

WHEREAS, in response to Board direction provided at the August 26 workshop, staff provided a 

memorandum dated September 16th, 2024 outlining in further detail the rough cost and timelines associated 

with Due Diligence and Market – Land-Use Optimization Study options at the September 19th 2024 DIA 

Board Meeting, at which time it was recommended by the DIA Board Chair that further discussion should 

take place in a DIA Board Committee; and 

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-07 

PAGE 2 OF 3 

2 

WHEREAS, after discussion at the October 10th, 2024, Retail Enhancement and Property 

Disposition Committee Meeting, the Committee recommended that the DIA Board authorize staff to solicit 

proposals for a Market – Land Use Optimization Study for the geographic area shown on Exhibit A; and  

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that costs for Market – Land Use Optimization study is estimated at 

$250,000, the funding of which is to be determined by the DIA Board at their November 2024 Board 

meeting,  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. The DIA  has determined that it wishes to have prepared a Market – Land Use 

Optimization Study for the properties included within the boundaries of the dashed area shown identified 

on Exhibit A, identifying optimal uses for each City-owned property identified by a white labeled parcel 

name in light of surrounding uses, identifying opportunities for and recommended optimal uses for private 

parcels appropriate for redevelopment, and including such height, use, and setback and similar restrictions 

as may be necessary to achieve optimal use. 

Section 3.  The DIA instructs its Chief Executive Officer to develop  a scope of services, scoring 

criteria and minimum qualifications for selection of a consultant to prepare the study recommended in 

Section 2 above; further instructing its Chief Executive Officer to provide the same to the DIA Board at its 

November 2024 Board Meeting  

Section 4. The DIA instructs its Chief Executive Officer to provide recommended funding 

sources, including draft Budget Transfers, at a DIA Budget and Finance Committee meeting in November 

for final action by the DIA Board at its November 2024 meeting. 

Section 5. The DIA authorizes its Chief Executive Officer to take all necessary action to 

effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective on the date of which it is signed by the DIA 

Board Chair. 

WITNESS:  DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

Witness Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair Date 

VOTE:    In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 



RIVERFRONT PLAZA
DEVELOPMENT 
SITE

EAST LANDING LOT
*WITHOUT RAMP

CITY HALL ANNEX
*ROFO

RESTAURANT
PAD

BAY ST

LIB
ER

TY
 ST

MA
RK

ET
 ST

NE
WN

AN
 ST

FORSYTH ST

LA
UR

A S
T

ADAMS ST (SR 228)

MA
IN

 ST
/U

S 1
7 (

SR
 5)

MONROE ST (SR 228)

ADAMS ST

¯RESOLUTION 2024-10-07
EXHIBIT A PAGE 3 OF 3

NOT TO SCALE
FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

STUDY AREA





TAB III.H 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 DIA CEO SEARCH FIRM 





RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) APPROVING A SPECIFICATION AND SCOPE (I.E. SCOPE OF 

SERVICES), MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS (I.E. MINIMUM 

QUALIFICATIONS) AND EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INCLUSION 

IN A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (“RFP”) FOR THE PROCUREMENT 

OF AN EXECUTIVE SEARCH FIRM; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 

OF AN RFP THROUGH THE CITY’S PROCUREMENT DIVISION FOR 

AN EXECUTIVE SEARCH FIRM; AUTHORIZING THE USE OF 

FISCAL YEAR 24-25 PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FUNDS FROM THE 

DIA’S ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET FOR PROCUREMENT OF 

SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE DIA’S CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO IDENTIFY THREE (3) RESPONSE EVALUATORS; AUTHORIZING 

THE CEO TO NEGOTIATE CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

WITH THE HIGHEST RANKED FIRM; AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF 

THE DIA TO EXECUTE CONTRACT / AGREEMENT FOR THE 

SERVICES SOUGHT HEREIN; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the DIA’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) has informed the DIA Board 

of Directors of her intent not to seek a contract renewal beyond the current contract term; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA CEO position is an executive leadership position requiring 

particular experience and expertise in community redevelopment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA CEO position requires experience in community redevelopment of 

an urban center similar to the size and scale of Downtown Jacksonville; and  

 

WHEREAS, the DIA recognizes that in order to identify and attract caliber of 

professional necessary for the successful transition of leadership, procurement of an executive 

search firm is necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to procure the services of an executive search firm, the DIA 

approves the issuance of an RFP or functional equivalent, incorporating the following: 

 

• Specification and Scope (I.e., Scope of Services), Exhibit 1 

• Minimum Requirements (I.e., Minimum Qualifications), Exhibit 2 

• Evaluation Criteria, Exhibit 3 

 

WHEREAS, given the multiple roles the DIA has, including the Community 

Redevelopment Agency for Downtown’s Community Redevelopment Areas and the Economic 

Development Agency for Downtown, the DIA desires to utilize Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Professional Services funds within the DIA’s Administrative Budget for procurement of the 

services sought herein,  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 

PAGE 2 OF 8 

Section 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby 

incorporated herein by this reference.  

Section 2. The DIA authorizes the issuance of an RFP or functional equivalent for 

the procurement of an executive search firm, incorporating the following: 

• Specification and Scope (I.e., Scope of Services), Exhibit 1

• Minimum Requirements (I.e., Minimum Qualifications), Exhibit 2

• Evaluation Criteria, Exhibit 3

Section 3. The DIA authorizes the use of Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Professional 

Services funds within the DIA’s Administrative Budget for procurement of these services. 

Section 4. Authorizing the CEO to identify three (3) RFP evaluators, the cumulative 

rankings of which will be provided to the Jacksonville Procurement Award Committee (JPAC). 

Section 5. Authorizing the CEO to negotiate contract terms and conditions with the 

highest ranked firm. 

Section 6. Upon successful negotiations with the highest ranked firm, authorizing the 

CEO to execute a contract / agreement for these services. 

Section 7.   This Resolution, 2024-10-09, shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

WITNESS:          DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair Date 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
PAGE 3 OF 8  

SPECIFICATION AND SCOPE 
SECTION II 

 

The Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is a quasi-independent agency created by 
the City Council of Jacksonville and governed by a nine-member board of directors, five of 
whom are mayoral appointees and four of whom are appointed by City Council. As a 
quasi-independent agency of government, the DIA operates within and under the 
obligations of Florida’s Public Records Law and Florida’s Sunshine Law found in Chapters 
119 and 287, Florida Statutes, respectively. 
 
The DIA’s Mission is to “To drive growth in business and investment, create a vibrant 
urban living environment and enhance quality of life in Downtown Jacksonville through 
the transparent and responsible leveraging of public investments, assets, infrastructure, 
and policy.” In furtherance of this mission, DIA’s guiding documents are the Business 
Investment and Improvement Strategy and the Community Redevelopment Agency Plans, 
collectives known as the Business Improvement Plan or “BID Plan.” The BID Plan as well 
as the summary Downtown Master Plan are included in this solicitation as Exhibits “X” 
and “X”, respectively.  
 
The DIA functions as two agencies: the Community Redevelopment Agency and the 
Economic Development Agency for Downtown Jacksonville. The overarching 
responsibilities of the DIA include: 
 

1. Acting as the Community Redevelopment Agency for management of the 
Community Redevelopment Area Plan’s goals and core values, and 
implementing the near-, mid- and long-term projects, programs, incentives and 
initiatives of the plan. Community Redevelopment Agencies, in addition to local 
laws, are governed by Florida Statutes Chapter 163, Part 3 (“Community 
Redevelopment Act of 1969”). 

2. Managing and allocating funds from the Tax Increment Finance (TIF) Trust Fund in 
correlation with projects, programs and initiatives in its Community Redevelopment 
Area Plans.  

3. Acting as the Economic Development Agency of the City of Jacksonville within the 
boundaries of Downtown, leveraging City allocated funds to attract investment, 
create jobs and restore vibrancy to Downtown Jacksonville. 

4. Overseeing the Office of Public Parking, which manages City-owned parking lots and 
garages. 

 
The DIA works closely with Jacksonville’s elected Mayor and City Council. The 19-member 
Council is the governing body for the City of Jacksonville, a consolidated City-County 
government and the Mayor is the head of the Executive Branch with substantial authority. 
DIA also works closely with City Departments (e.g. Public Works, Planning & 
Development), independent agencies (e.g. Jacksonville Transportation Authority “JTA”) 
and other local, regional and state agencies (e.g. Florida Department of Transportation).  
 

https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/parking-facilities-and-enforcement.aspx


RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
PAGE 4 OF 8  

The DIA is seeking an executive search firm with particular experience and expertise in 
placement of downtown development/redevelopment, community redevelopment, 
economic development, finance, real estate development and economic policy 
professionals. Specific services sought include:  
 

(i) based on the required skills and expertise included as Exhibit “X” [Ordinance 
Code required qualifications] to this solicitation, assist in the refinement of the job 
description for the Downtown Investment Authority CEO position; 

(ii) identify and establish candidate qualifications and character standards;  
(iii) perform a market compensation study to include a recommended compensation 

package;  
(iv) for the purposes of understanding necessary and desired CEO traits, skills, 

experience and education from various perspectives, interview DIA staff, DIA 
Board Members, City Council members, the Mayor /members of her 
Administration, stakeholders, and others as to be identified in consultation with 
the DIA Board Chair; 

(v) conduct a national search for highly qualified candidates for the position of 
Downtown Investment Authority Chief Executive Officer, including outreach to 
encourage qualified applicants to apply; 

(vi) assist the DIA in preparing and placing advertisements for the position in 
appropriate publications; 

(vii) send out and receive all application materials and documents; 
(viii) review resumes for education, experience and qualifications; 
(ix) conduct educational and criminal background checks on the most qualified 

candidates; 
(x) conduct background checks regarding whether any civil judgments, claims, 

litigation, or contract disputes are pending or have been instituted against the 
most qualified candidates in the past 5 years or whether the most qualified 
candidates have been the subject of any regulatory or license agencies sanctions in 
the past 5 years; 

(xi) conduct a search of news articles, social media and reports of the most qualified 
candidates 

(xii) evaluate candidates for serious consideration by conducting in-depth reference 
checks with individuals who are or have been in a position to evaluate the 
candidate’s performance on the job. Through these reference checks, ascertain the 
candidate’s strength in relation to the job description prepared by the 
Organization. 

(xiii) finalize a process for interviews and coordinate candidates’ participation in 
interviews; 

(xiv) assist the Organization in developing a set of interview questions that reflect 
identified criteria and characteristics;  

(xv) notify rejected applicants; and 
(xvi) assist the DIA with contract negotiations with the top candidate(s). 

 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
PAGE 5 OF 8  

The selected consultant will report to the Board of Directors of the DIA, providing the 
necessary financial and administrative reporting information and support to enable the 
Board to make responsible and prudent policy decisions. 

 
DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY CEO POSITION 

 

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the staff and budget of the DIA. 
The CEO will execute the strategic direction of the DIA and develop and maintain excellent 
relationships with all downtown and community stakeholders, including elected officials, 
property owners and developers, business operators, residents, government agencies, and 
community leaders. 

 
SKILLS AND EXPERTISE 
The DIA seeks a CEO with a minimum of ten (10) years’ experience in the identified fields , 
with a  minimum of five (5) years at the management level. Experience in Community 
Redevelopment or Downtown redevelopment is preferred. For clarity, community 
redevelopment or downtown development  experience should be in an urban area of similar 
size and focus to that of Downtown Jacksonville. The successful candidate will possess a 
strong combination of skills, expertise, professional and visionary attributes. A goal-driven 
approach is important, along with the ability to maintain a positive, can-do attitude marked by 
innovative, out-of-the-box thinking. While specific necessary skills and expertise are identified 
within Exhibit “X”, it is expected that refinement of these will be a work product of the 
consultant.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
PAGE 6 OF 8 
 

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS  
The Consultant must satisfy the following mandatory minimum requirements in order to have their 
Responses evaluated. By submitting the Consultant warrants and represents that it satisfies these 
requirements. Failure to meet these requirements may result in the Response not being evaluated and 
being rejected as non-responsive:  
 
Proposer must:  
 

a. Provide evidence demonstrating they have experience in placing qualified candidates in 
executive level leadership positions in the fields of community redevelopment, downtown 
development/redevelopment, economic development, real estate development,  finance, 
economic policy and other similar disciplines in other large and medium sized Cities throughout 
the United States.  

b. The Consultant shall provide current proof of all business licenses required by local, state, and 
federal law as applicable.  

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
EXHIBIT 3 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
PAGE 7 OF 8 
 

EVALUATION CRITERIA  
 
The Evaluation Committee shall determine qualifications, interest and availability by reviewing the 
written responses received, and, when deemed necessary, by conducting formal interviews of selected 
proposers that are determined to be best qualified based upon the evaluation of written responses. It is 
the sole responsibility of each proposer to address in its proposal each of the selection criteria described 
herein. Provide with your proposal any other information which would be relevant to the application of the 
selection criteria to your proposal.  
 
The proposal evaluation criteria, and applicable scoring maximums, are set forth below. In the event 
interviews are conducted, up to 10 additional points may be added to the overall averaged score. 
  

a. Qualification/Experience related to this proposal (30 Maximum Points):  
 

To include technical education, training, and experience in similar assignments, of both the firm 
responding to the solicitation, and of the specific individual(s) assigned to this project, 
particularly with respect to experience recruiting and placing top executives in community 
redevelopment and downtown development/redevelopment industries, city planning, finance, 
real estate development and economic policy  fields. Specific experience, if any, in recruiting 
in community redevelopment professionals for agencies of similar size and scope will be 
particularly relevant. Responses must include the resumes and role of those individuals 
performing the scope of work sought herein. 

 
b. Statement Defining Understanding of Need; (15 Maximum Points):  

 
Set forth a clear statement of the Consultant’s understanding of the needs of the Authority for the 
services sought, and a detailed schedule for timely completion of the assignment. This criteria 
will be scored on the demonstration that the Consultant has a clear understanding of the scope 
of work sought.  

 
c. Search Methodology, Approach and Schedule for Completion (25 Maximum Points):  

 
Qualities and indicators that should receive consideration, should generally include the 
Consultant’s performance in converting the Scope of Services into a work plan and schedule for 
completion, the detail and clarity as to the respondent’s approach to undertaking the project and 
how that approach will best achieve the desired outcome, company’s ability to identify any 
special problems or concerns associated with the project and ideas how these obstacles should 
be addressed, including any approach which are designed to save time and money. The State of 
Florida has broad and encompassing public records and transparency in government laws 
(Florida’s Public Records Law, found in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Florida Sunshine 
Law found in Chapter 286, Florida Statutes). Consultants must demonstrate that their 
methodology and approach conform to these laws. 

 
d. Fees and Expenses (10 Maximum Points):  

 
Provide a flat fee on Price Sheet Form 1. State with particularity the basis of fees, any caps or 
floors, and any additional costs or expenses (including out-of-pocket expenses) for which 
reimbursement will be expected.  

 



RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
EXHIBIT 3 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-09 
PAGE 8 OF 8 
 

 
e. References (20  Maximum Points)  

 
(15 points ) The Consultant shall provide 3-5 references from agencies or firms who successfully 
hired candidates proposed by the search firm within the last five (5) years together with contact 
information for the agency, the date of the search, and the number of years the executive hired 
has served in their new role. 
 
(5 points) The Consultant shall provide a list of the ten (10) most recent executive search 
engagements for which the agency was hired, identifying the organization, organization contact 
and contact information, the general professional field of the search and the outcome of the 
search.   



TAB IV.A  

SEPTEMBER 18TH, 2024 DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING 
MINUTES APPROVAL 





 
 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

DIA Board Members: Patrick Krechowski, Esq.; Sondra Fetner, Esq.; Melinda Powers, Esq.; 

Scott Wohlers, Jim Citrano; and Micah Heavener 

 

Mayor’s Office: None 

 

Council Members: None 

 

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate 

and Development; Guy Parola, Director of Operations; Allan DeVault, Project Manager; and Ava 

Hill, Administrative Assistant 

 

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called to order the Downtown Investment Authority Meeting at 

3:10 PM.  

 

II. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

A. SEPTEMBER 18TH, 2024, DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion to approve the meeting minutes as presented. 

 

Motion:  Board Member Fetner motioned to approve the meeting minutes. 

Second:           Board Member Powers seconded the motion. 

 

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Krechowski called for a vote. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0 

 

 

B. RESOLUTION 2024-09-04 BOB CARLE APPRECIATION 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY IN 

RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION OF MR. BOB CARLE FOR HIS MANY YEARS 



 
 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

OF SERVICE, DEDICATION AND LEADERSHIP TO THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, 

THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND DOWNTOWN 

JACKSONVILLE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

CEO Boyer read aloud the resolution recognizing Bob Carle for his years of service and 

dedication to the City of Jacksonville. The resolution detailed the various positions held by 

Mr. Carle during the 35-years he spent with the City of Jacksonville. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski called for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Motion: Board Member Citrano motioned to approve the resolution.  

Seconded: Board Member Heavener seconded the motion. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski congratulated and thanked him for his service. He then called for a 

vote on the resolution. 

 

Vote:  Aye: 6  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  

 

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0 

 

C. RESOLUTION 2024-09-06 COMMENDING JOHN SILVEIRA’S SERVICE TO 

RAM 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 

COMMENDING MR. JOHN SILVEIRA FOR HIS SERVICE TO DOWNTOWN AS THE 

MARKET DIRECTOR FOR THE RIVERSIDE ARTS MARKET; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

This resolution was deferred to October. 

 

III. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING 

 

A. OLD AND NEW BUSINESS 

 

Guy Parola, Director of Operations, mentioned the Board’s request for further due diligence 

on a market and land use analysis. He then summarized the costs and time and explained that 

procurement time was included. He also discussed the title and recorded easements, 

encumbrances, phase one environmental, geotechnical, sub-surface utility engineering, 

pricing for what can be relocated, demolition, cost estimates for design, order of magnitude, 

and scenarios. 

 

CEO Boyer explained the definitions of the terms “highest and best use” and “optimal use.” 



 
 

PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski expressed that he believed discussions should be held at the 

committee level. He also mentioned that he’d want to know where the funds would be taken 

away from. 

 

Board Member Citrano mentioned using the term highest and best use. He also mentioned 

the cost to deal with the infrastructure on the site and if it was feasible to remove. CEO Boyer 

responded that depending on the size of the building she’d do the optimal use report first. He 

also asked if removing the Main Street bridge ramp was to that to accommodate a building 

there or if it was always planned. CEO Boyer responded that it had been long planned. 

 

Board Member Fetner asked if they were speaking of the east side of the ramp. CEO Boyer’s 

answer was that she was correct. Board Member Fetner also mentioned that she had concerns 

about the Riverfront Plaza and Ford on Bay properties. Mr. Parola responded that DIA knows 

the properties fairly well. Board Member Fetner also asked if DIA would be looking at the 

properties in a global sense. CEO Boyer responded that a scope would have to be developed 

and then explained why. 

 

Board Chair Krechowski expressed that he wants to push for the property at Ford on Bay. 

 

Board Member Heavener mentioned if there would be enough housing units and if they were 

at the right economic level if the focus was going to be on the core. CEO responded that DIA 

would be happy to have further discussions about that. 

 

Board Member Powers expressed that she supports using the optimal use approach. 

 

Board Member Wohlers mentioned that the question was not answered as to where money 

would come from. CEO Boyer responded that she would have to get back to the Board with 

an answer. 

 

B. DOWNTOWN PROJECT UPDATE AND CEO REPORT 

 

Using a PowerPoint presentation, CEO Boyer provided project updates and then reviewed 

the following items: 

 

➢ Special Committee on Downtown 

➢ Budget 

➢ OPP Staffing- New Public Parking Officer, Peter Sherwill  

➢ Professional Services contracts 

➢ Capital Projects updates: 

➢ Development Updates: 

➢ Disposition schedule and criteria 



 
 

PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

Downtown Investment Authority 

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting 

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 

➢ Conversations ongoing with University of Florida 

 

Board Chair Krechowski mentioned the Governance Committee Meeting and encouraged 

everyone to attend. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Krechowski adjourned the DIA meeting at 4:11 

PM. 

 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 

comments of this meeting, a recording is available upon request.  Please contact Ava Hill at 

avah@coj.net to acquire a recording of the meeting. 

mailto:avah@coj.net


TAB IV.B.i 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-08 POUR TAPROOM MODIFICATION 





RESOLUTION 2024-10-08 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) AMENDING THE  PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE CONTAINED 

WITHIN THE TERM SHEET BETWEEN THE DIA (“GRANTOR”) AND 

GATHERTAP, LLC AND VYSTAR CREDIT UNION (“GRANTEE”), 

APPROVED VIA RESOLUTION 2024-04-07; AUTHORIZING THE CEO 

OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE 

THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION AND THE PURPOSES OF 

RESOLUTION 2024-04-07, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the North 

Bank CRA, for which a BID Plan, inclusive of a Community Redevelopment Plan, was adopted 

by Ordinance 2014-560-E and updated pursuant to Ordinance 2022-0372; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on April 17, 2024, the DIA Board adopted Resolution 2024-04-07, 

approving a Targeted Food and Beverage Retail Enhancement Grant (FAB REP) and a Sidewalk 

Enhancement Grant for Grantees to establish a food and beverage business at 61 N Laura Street; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Performance Schedule contained in the Term Sheet to Resolution 2024-

04-07 allowed six (6) months to execute the Loan Agreement from the date of Board approval, 

which is Thursday, October 17, 2024; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the DIA CEO has authority to extend dates found in the Performance 

Schedule of the Redevelopment Agreement, which does not extend to periods prior to execution 

of the Redevelopment Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, DIA and Grantees are in the final stages of negotiation of deal points found 

in the Redevelopment Agreement, but additional time is needed to reach agreement and execute 

the documents; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the DIA finds it necessary and in the best interest of the City to amend the 

Term Sheet approved via Resolution 2024-04-07 pursuant to Section 2 of this Resolution.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.    By this action, the DIA hereby authorizes the CEO to extend the deadline 

for executing the Agreements as necessary to effectuate the purposes of Resolution 2024-04-07 

for a period of up to three additional months. 



 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-08 

PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 Section 3.  The DIA hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution and Resolution 

2024-04-07, including the execution of contracts, agreements and other documents. 

 

 Section 4.    This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair 

of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

 

WITNESS:        DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY      

 

 

 

 

_____________________            

Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair  Date 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TAB IV.B.iI 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-10 URBAN DOUGH MODIFICATION 





RESOLUTION 2024-10-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) AMENDING THE  PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE CONTAINED 

WITHIN THE TERM SHEET BETWEEN THE DIA (“GRANTOR”) AND 

URBAN DOUGH, LLC AND VYSTAR CREDIT UNION (“GRANTEE”), 

APPROVED VIA RESOLUTION 2024-04-08; AUTHORIZING THE CEO 

OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE 

THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION AND THE PURPOSES OF 

RESOLUTION 2024-04-08, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the North 

Bank CRA, for which a BID Plan, inclusive of a Community Redevelopment Plan, was adopted 

by Ordinance 2014-560-E and updated pursuant to Ordinance 2022-0372; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on April 17, 2024, the DIA Board adopted Resolution 2024-04-08, 

approving a Targeted Food and Beverage Retail Enhancement Grant (FAB REP) and a Sidewalk 

Enhancement Grant for Grantees to establish a food and beverage business at 61 N Laura Street; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Performance Schedule contained in the Term Sheet to Resolution 2024-

04-08 allowed six (6) months to execute the Loan Agreement from the date of Board approval, 

which is Thursday, October 17, 2024; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the DIA CEO has authority to extend dates found in the Performance 

Schedule of the Redevelopment Agreement, which does not extend to periods prior to execution 

of the Redevelopment Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, DIA and Grantees are in the final stages of negotiation of deal points found 

in the Redevelopment Agreement, but additional time is needed to reach agreement and execute 

the documents; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the DIA finds it necessary and in the best interest of the City to amend the 

Term Sheet approved via Resolution 2024-04-08 pursuant to Section 2 of this Resolution.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.    By this action, the DIA hereby authorizes the CEO to extend the deadline 

for executing the Agreements as necessary to effectuate the purposes of Resolution 2024-04-08 

for a period of up to three additional months.   



 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-10 

PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 Section 3.  The DIA hereby authorizes the CEO of the Downtown Investment 

Authority to take all action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution 2024-10-10 and 

Resolution 2024-04-08, including the execution of contracts, agreements and other documents. 

 

 Section 4.    This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair 

of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

 

WITNESS:        DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY      

 

 

 

 

_____________________            

Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair  Date 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TAB V.A 

RESOLUTION 2024-10-05 COMMENDING JOHN SILVEIRA’S SERVICE TO RAM 





RESOLUTION 2024-10-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(“DIA”) COMMENDING MR. JOHN SILVEIRA FOR HIS SERVICE TO 

DOWNTOWN AS THE MARKET DIRECTOR FOR THE RIVERSIDE 

ARTS MARKET; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Riverside Arts Market (“RAM”) started in 2009, and for the past fifteen 

years RAM has grown from a small, seasonal market to a year-round market with a diverse selection 

of artisans and producers; and  

WHEREAS, RAM sees over 4,000 weekly visitors and is a valuable contributor to the 

vibrancy of Downtown and Riverside; and 

WHEREAS, in 2016, Mr. Silveira brought his extensive experience in farmers and arts 

markets from the San Francisco Bay area to Jacksonville, helping to grow RAM from sixty vendors 

to over 150 weekly vendors; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Silveira and his team sift through over a thousand applicants, selecting 

local vendors with locally sourced food, produce and art; and 

WHEREAS, the DIA recognizes that Mr. Silveira in no small part contributed to the 

success of RAM, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

Section 1. The Downtown Investment Authority commends of Mr. Silveira on his 

contributions to the success of RAM. 

Section 2. This Resolution 2024-10-05 shall become effective on the date it is signed by 

the Chair of the DIA Board. 

WITNESS:  DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

______________________ 

Patrick Krechowski, Esq., Chair Date 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 


	1.pdf
	ADPB02D.tmp
	SECTION II
	DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY CEO POSITION
	SKILLS AND EXPERTISE


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



